
 

 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Port of Kennewick  

Regular Commission Business Meeting 
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers and via GoToMeeting 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick Washington 
 

July 23, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL  

 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments July 16, 2024 
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated July 23, 2024 
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes July 9, 2024 

 
VI. PRESENTATION 

A. Governance and Ethics Discussion, Carolyn Lake (TIM)  
 

VII. ACTION ITEM 
A. HAEIF Grant Application for Vista Field Improvements; Resolution 2024-14 (TANA) 

 
VIII. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Kennewick Waterfront 
1. Kittson Property Exchange Introduction (CAROLYN) 

B. Vista Field Update (LARRY) 
C. Commission Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 
D. Non-Scheduled Items 

(LISA/BRIDGETTE/TANA/LARRY/AMBER/MICHAEL/CAROLYN/TIM/KEN/TOM/SKIP) 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

PLEASE MUTE YOUR MICROPHONE UNLESS YOU ARE SPEAKING  
AND SILENCE ALL NOISE MAKING DEVICES 

 

To continue to provide public access to meetings, Port of Kennewick will provide telephonic, video access,  
and in-person participation options to the public. 

 
To participate by telephone, please call in at: 1-866-899-4679, Access Code:  860-997-909 

Or, join on-line at the following link: https://meet.goto.com/860997909  
 
 

tel:+18668994679,,310245037
https://meet.goto.com/860997909


PORT OF KENNEWICK 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      
  DRAFT   JULY 9, 2024 MINUTES 
   

Page 1 of 5 

Commission Meeting recordings, with agenda items linked to corresponding audio, can be found on the 
Port’s website at:  https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/ 
 
Commission President Skip Novakovich called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
  

ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL 
 
The following were present: 
 
Board Members: Skip Novakovich, President   
 Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President   
 Thomas Moak, Secretary   
   
Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer 
 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive (via telephone) 
 Nick Kooiker, Deputy Chief Executive Officer/CFO (via telephone) 
 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Building (via telephone)  
 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate    
 Michael Boehnke, Director of Operations (via telephone) 
 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone)  
 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator  
 Carolyn Lake, Port Counsel (via telephone) 
 Taudd Hume, Port Counsel (via telephone)  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Ms. Hanchette led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT   
No comments were made.   
   
CONSENT AGENDA                          

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated July 2, 2024 
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $115,219.00 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated July 9, 2024 
Expense Fund Voucher Number 106008 through 106047 for a grand total of $200,159.43 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes June 24, 2024 
D. Approval of Amendment #1 to Task Order #1 with the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla 

Indian Reservation (CTUIR) in the amount of $20,824.96 for cultural monitoring within Vista 
Field; Resolution 2024-13 
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Hohenberg moved to approve the Consent Agenda presented;  
Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 
3:0. 

https://www.portofkennewick.org/commission-meetings-audio/


PORT OF KENNEWICK   JULY 9, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 2 of 5 

 

PRESENTATIONS 
A. Vista Field Lot #31 Proposal 

Mr. Arntzen stated the proposal from Cantley Vision is very exciting, because not only will they 
being constructing a medical space but also constructing an additional professional suite for 
lease.  Mr. Arntzen stated the collaborative design process for this proposal has been seamless 
and the turnaround has been quick, as the letter of intent was submitted in May 2024.   
 
Ms. Hanchette presented the Cantley Vision proposal for Vista Field Lot 31 to construct a 6,500-
7,000 square foot building (Exhibit A).   
 
Dr. Barney gave a brief history of Cantley Vision and stated they have outgrown their current 
Kennewick office and Vista Field would be a perfect fit.  Dr. Barney has been pleased working 
with Ms. Hanchette and the team and is excited to move forward.     
 
Ms. Hanchette met with Hummel Construction about the Vista Field Master Plan and stated it 
was a very productive meeting.  Ms. Hanchette stated Cantley Vision is offering $21 per square 
foot and the Port expenses include a 4% real estate commission and construction of a joint use 
parking.   
 
The Commission and staff discussed the proposal and are excited about the project and are in 
favor of moving forward with the 90-day right to negotiate.    
 

MOTION:  Commissioner Moak moved to approve Resolution 2024-12 approving a 90-Day Right to 
Negotiate with Cantley Vision Inc for the development of a medical office building and retail space 
on Lot 31 in the port’s Vista Field redevelopment project; and that all action by Port officers and 
employees in furtherance hereof is ratified and approved; and further, the Port Chief Executive 
Officer is authorized to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof; Commissioner Hohenberg 
seconded.   
 

Discussion:  
Commissioner Moak stated this is a great opportunity and thinks it will be a good transition from 
Azure Drive commercial to residential.  As we continue to work with more architects, realtors, 
and contractors who understand the vision for Vista Field, the process will become smoother.  
Commissioner Moak thinks this proposal stands on its own as a great project and provides a 
needed service at Vista Field.  
 
Commissioner Hohenberg thanked Dr. Barney for investing in Vista Field by constructing a 
place for his business, but also by creating another opportunity for someone else. Commissioner 
Hohenberg can see more of those opportunities as we continue to receive more proposals and 
this proposal maximizes the use of the footprint. The Commission is fully supportive and wishes 
Dr. Barney great success at Vista Field. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   JULY 9, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 3 of 5 

 

Commissioner Novakovich is fully supportive and hopes Dr. Barney is successful and hopes the 
Port can assist him in any way possible.  
 
With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 3:0. 

  
REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  

A. WPPA Commissioner Seminar & Commissioner’s Meeting Scheduling.  
Commissioner Novakovich stated the Washington Public Ports Commissioner Seminar will be 
held Monday, July 22 through Wednesday, July 24, 2024 in Richland.  The Commission has a 
regularly scheduled Commission Meeting on Tuesday, July 23, 2024 and inquired if the 
Commission is open to taking a break during the WPPA Seminar to attend the Commission 
Meeting.  
 
Commissioner Moak had not planned to attend the WPPA Seminar because the Port meeting had 
not been cancelled.  Commissioner Moak supports having the regularly scheduled Commission 
Meeting on Tuesday, July 23, 2024. 
 
Commissioner Hohenberg is attending the WPPA Seminar but agrees with Commissioner Moak 
that our first priority is to take care of the Port of Kennewick business.   
 
Commissioner Novakovich is supportive of moving forward with the regularly scheduled 
Commission Meeting on Tuesday, July 23, 2024 as well.   
 
Mr. Arntzen stated he would like to discuss the potential land transfer with KIE on the July 23, 
2024 Commission Meeting and will work with Ms. Scott on the Agenda.    
 
Ms. Schumacher outlined the WPPA Agenda for Tuesday afternoon.  
 
Commissioner Novakovich asked the Commission what their thoughts are on returning to holding 
in-person meetings twice a month. 
 
Commissioner Moak is fine with that.  
 
Commissioner Hohenberg confirmed the Commission adjusted the policy to allow if someone is 
traveling or has COVID, they would be able to participate virtually. 
 
Commissioner Novakovich stated that is correct. 
 
Commissioner Hohenberg stated if he is in town and not sick, he would participate in the in-person 
meetings; however, he thinks the CEO should have the flexibility to decide if staff should be in 
chambers and who should remote in. 
 
Commissioner Moak stated Mr. Arntzen has done a good job placing bigger items on the agenda 
for the in-person meetings; and stated if he is in town he will be at the in-person meeting.     



PORT OF KENNEWICK   JULY 9, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 4 of 5 

 

 
Commissioner Novakovich read from the Commission Rules of Policies and Procedures:  
 

“6.10.6: Commission and staff members who are unable to be present in person at any 
meeting shall have the right to participate by telephone or other internet service; subject to 
any limitations established in these Rules to govern such participation.”   

 
“6.11: Commissioner Attendance At Meetings.  Commissioners shall inform the President 
or Chief Executive Officer if they are unable to attend any Commission meeting, or if they 
will be late to any meeting...”   

 
It is the Consensus of the Commission to start holding in-person meetings for all Commission Meetings 
beginning July 23, 2024. Furthermore, based on the Commission Rules of Policies and Procedures, the 
Commission may also attend the Meetings remotely. Lastly, the Commission authorizes Mr. Arntzen the 
flexibility to move an in-person meeting to a remote meeting.  

 
B. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.  
 

C. Non-Scheduled Items   
Mr. Boehnke reported that the Cedars Dock inspection was completed, and staff are currently 
reviewing the options for the dock.  
 
Mr. Arntzen outlined the history of the dock issue and reached out to Doug and Carrie Lundgren, 
owners of Cedars Pier One Restaurant to update them on the inspection and invited them to the 
Commission Meeting today.  Mr. Arntzen believes there are two options:  

• remove the dock completely and boaters utilize the Port guest marina dock; 
• remove and replace the dock completely per State and Federal Standards.   

  
Mr. Arntzen stated the dock will remain at Cedars for the summer; however, nothing is budgeted 
for 2024 and if the Commission decides to move forward with a new dock it could take at least 18 
months to permit.  
 
Commissioner Novakovich inquired what the potential cost for a new dock could be.  
 
Mr. Peterson estimated the ballpark figure for the permitting, design and construction at 
$400,000.00.  Additionally, the construction window for pile driving activity in the water is 
December 15th through February 28th.  If the Commission were to move forward on this project, 
Mr. Peterson believes design and permitting could occur fall of 2024 through summer of 2025, 
with construction from December 2025-February 2026. 
 
Mr. Arntzen met with Ms. Lake and Ms. Oneza regarding the KIE land transfer and stated Ms. 
Lake will be drafting the Purchase and Sale Agreement and Ms. Oneza will work on the planning 
aspect of the transfer.  



PORT OF KENNEWICK   JULY 9, 2024 MINUTES 
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  
 

 Page 5 of 5 

 

 
Commissioner Hohenberg thanked Ms. Hanchette and staff for today's proposal and the 
thoroughness of the paperwork.  Furthermore, Commissioner Hohenberg appreciates the weekly 
meetings with Mr. Arntzen and the consistent communication.     
 
Commissioner Moak confirmed that the July 23, 2024 Commission Meeting will be in-person.   
 
Commissioner Moak would like staff to include photographs for the KIE land transfer showing the 
road, in addition to maps and drawings.   
 
Commissioner Novakovich thanked Ms. Hanchette and staff for bringing these proposals forward 
and stated staff is doing an amazing job. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were made.  
 
COMMISSION COMMENTS   
No comments were made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 3:16  p.m.  
 
 
APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
  

      
 
Skip Novakovich, President 
 
 
 
 

       
 
Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
 

 
 

 
      

  
Thomas Moak, Secretary 

 
 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK TO 

APPROVE A 90 DAY RIGHT TO NEGOTIATE PERIOD  
WITH CANTLEY VISION INC, PS 

 
WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick (“Port) Commission has authorized port staff to 

market parcels for sale within the Vista Field redevelopment project; and  
 

WHEREAS, port staff has received a proposal from Dr. Brandon Furness and Dr. Royce 
Barney of Cantley Vision Inc., PS dba Columbia Point Eye Care Clinic for construction of a 7,000 
sf medical building on Lot 31 in Phase I of the port’s Vista Field redevelopment project; and  
 

WHEREAS, the proposal has received preliminary staff, legal and design review related 
to the Vista Field Master Plan and Collaborative Design Process. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of 
Commissioners hereby approves a ‘90 Day Right to Negotiate’ time-period with Dr. Furness and 
Dr. Barney of Cantley Vision Inc, PS for construction of a medical office building and retail space 
within Vista Field.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of Commissioners 

hereby ratify and approve all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof; and 
authorize the Port Chief Executive Officer to take all action necessary in furtherance hereof. 

  
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick on the 9th day of July, 

2024. 
PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

      By:  _______________________________ 
        

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  
      
     By: _______________________________ 

        
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
      By: _______________________________ 
        

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 
 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 8260AF6F-5742-401B-AE62-EBF1A8622FD5



PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING  

AMENDMENT #1 TO TASK #1 OF THE CONTRACT WITH  
CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF THE UMATILLA INDIAN RESERVATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, in 2013, the Port entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Port entered into a Master Contract with the CTUIR for Cultural 

Monitoring on March 20, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CTUIR and Port approved Task Order #1 for Cultural Monitoring for the 

Vista Field Southern Gateway Project on March 20, 2024 in the amount of $4,597.79; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Port needs to amend Task Order #1 adding additional funds for Cultural 
Monitoring within Vista Field. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners 
of the Port of Kennewick hereby authorize the Port’s Chief Executive Officer to execute 
Amendment #1 to Task Order #1 with the CTUIR in the amount of $20,824.96 for Cultural 
Monitoring within Vista Field. 
 
 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick on the 9th day of 
July 2024.  

 
PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 
 

      By:  _______________________________ 
        

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, President  
       
  
     By: _______________________________ 

        
KENNETH HOHENBERG, Vice President 

 
 
      By: _______________________________ 
        

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 13CE044A-2924-432D-8971-2CB28AB14F08



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A





Port of Kennewick

Commission Discussion: 

Governance, Ethics & Conflicts of Interest
Presented by

Carolyn Lake 

Port Legal Counsel





  
 

           
 
 

      AGENDA REPORT 
 
TO:  Port Commission 
  
FROM:    Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy CEO  
 
MEETING DATE:    July 23, 2024 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution No. 2024-14 - Hanford Area Economic Investment Funds 

(HAEIF) Grant to support Vista Field Commercial Use Development 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I. REFERENCE(S):  Resolution 2024-14 

 
II. FISCAL IMPACT:  $325,000 

$325,000 positive to the port. The pending sale of Vista Field lot 31 for optical care center/retail 
space and other future commercial and business investment along Azure Drive requires 
construction of vehicle parking. A&E design for these improvements is currently underway. If 
successful, this HAEIF grant would be utilized to help with construction of commercial use 
parking areas within the 2025 budget. Having these HAEIF funds available for parking 
improvements would allow the Port to continue pursuing commercial development opportunities 
within Vista Field.  

 
III. DISCUSSION:   

The HAEIF Advisory Committee has $560k available this grant cycle to fund infrastructure 
projects that focus on creating primary jobs and encourage new development and business 
expansion. They also have indicated a preference to fund a few larger projects of economic 
significance rather than many smaller actions. And although HAEIF requires a 25% local match, 
applications containing greater matching funds will receive preference.  
 
Staff are directed within the port’s Work Plan to seek grant funding to make improvements as 
identified within the Vista Field Master Plan. However, port policy requires Commission 
approval of all grant applications. At the Commission’s direction, port staff would submit a grant 
application to help fund the parking area, roads, and utility work to support proposed commercial 
development on Azure Drive. That project work (excluding design and permits) is estimated at 
$650,000; thus, we could seek a $325,000 HAEIF grant—offering a 50% local match.  
 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve Resolution 2024-14 authorizing Port staff to submit a HAEIF grant application. 

 
V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2024-14 authorizing the submittal of a Vista Field 
parking improvement grant application to the Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund 
Advisory Committee; and further authorizing the Port’s Executive Director to execute all 
subsequent documents necessary for implementation of the grant funding request. 



 
PORT OF KENNEWICK 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  2024-14 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO THE 
HANFORD AREA ECONOMIC INVESTMENT FUND FOR CONSTRUCTION 

OF A PARKING AREA TO SUPPORT COMMERICAL DEVELOPMENT  
AT VISTA FIELD 

 
WHEREAS, the Hanford Area Economic Investment Fund (HAEIF) Advisory Committee has 

announced they will receive Infrastructure Grant Applications in August 2024; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick’s Work Plan calls for improvements to Vista Field to 
attract commercial use and business development; and  

 
WHEREAS, this grant program offers an opportunity to apply for $325,000 which the port 

would match with $325,000 (50%); and  
 
WHEREAS, grant applications containing matching funds in excess of the HAEIF 25% target 

will receive preference; and 
 
WHEREAS, submission of the grant applications requires Commission approval by resolution.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE; BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Board of 
Commissioners hereby authorizes Port staff to submit an application of $325,000 to the Hanford Area 
Economic Investment Fund Committee (HAEIF) for funding consideration for improvements to 
support commercial development at Vista Field; and agrees to commit the required (50%) match by 
apportioning up to $325,000 from the Port’s 2025 Construction Fund. 
 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick this 23rd day of July 
2024.  
 
 PORT OF KENNEWICK 
 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
       By:   _____________________________ 
        Skip Novakovich, President 

            
       By:   _____________________________ 
        Kenneth Hohenberg, Vice President 
 
       By: _____________________________ 
        Thomas Moak, Secretary 





April 3, 2024

PORT

K.I.E.

EXISTING
Parcels & Ownership

EXHIBIT B



K.I.E receives
100ft x 100ft (10,000sf)
Adjacent existing gravel 
parking area

PORT receives
50ft x 210ft+ (10,500sf)
Panhandle adjacent 
Duffy’s Pond Trail

POTENTIAL SWAP
Revised Parcels & 
Ownership

April 3, 2024

PORT

K.I.E.

 Survey, Deeds & City fees
 Tree Removal
 Site Control [fencing/Ecology blocks]
“Material” Removal

Expenses to be paid and/or shared by 
K.I.E. and PORT.  Agreement on 
Responsibility needed.

EXHIBIT B


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Governance and Ethics Discussion Cover page.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: Port of Kennewick   Commission Discussion:  Governance, Ethics & Conflicts of Interest 

	Blank Page



